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To: Request for Proposals Recipients 

From: Santa Clara Valley Open Space Authority 

Date: August 20, 2021 

Re: Addendum 1 to RFP 2021-15 
 
 

Addenda No. 1 consists of: 

Santa Clara Valley Open Space Authority has received the following questions in response to its 
Request for Proposals (RFP) for Website Maintenance and Support 

In addition to these responses the Authority expects all responding vendors to have reviewed the 
entire RFP scope of work in detail. 

 
1. Can companies from Outside USA can apply for this? 
We will not bar consultants from submitting a proposal. However, we will evaluate whether a 
consultant is qualified and meets all legal requirements after the submission of all timely 
proposals. 
 
2. Does the Authority expect us to do the maintenance of the existing CMS of their site and also 
implement new pages to that site? 
Yes. The vendor will maintain the existing CMS of the site, as well as create new page templates 
and implement new pages as needed within an agreed upon timeframe.  
 
3. Where is the current website hosted? Can we get some information on hosting partners? 
The Authority’s website is hosted through JustHost. 
 
4.  Does Authority already have a CRM implementation with HubSpot and expects the vendor to 
do only the integration? 
The Authority currently uses HubSpot CRM tools. The vendor is expected to assist with website 
integration as needed.  
 
5. Can meetings be held virtually? 
Yes, the Open Space Authority can conduct meetings virtually using Teams, Zoom, or other secure 
online platforms. While working with vendors, we ask that meetings are scheduled to occur during 
the Authority’s normal hours of operation between 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. PST.    
 
6. Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside U.S.A.? 
We will evaluate whether a consultant is qualified and meets all legal requirements to conduct 
business in the State of California. 
 
7. Can we submit the proposals via email? 
All proposals must be submitted as described on page 4 of the RFP. Proposals must be delivered by 
email (with attachments, if any) to the following email address: 
proposals@openspaceauthority.org, with the following language in the subject line of the email 

https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiUrdb0zqTyAhVKvJ4KHRKBA8MQFnoECAYQAw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.justhost.com%2F&usg=AOvVaw0Sv_9dL8fPBsj2M-d7SFr5
mailto:proposals@openspaceauthority.org


Addendum No. 1 
Website Maintenance and Support 

2 
 

“Attention: RFP-2021-15 re: WEBSITE MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT” For further details including 
response format, please refer to page 4 of RFP-2021-15 re: WEBSITE MAINTENANCE AND 
SUPPORT”  
 
8. The maps on the website are built from MapBox/Open Street Map. Will this software 
continue to be used for the map updating, or is the agency looking to use another software for 
the trails? I see the Authority wants to implement their own GIS mapping tool as well. Is this the 
same tool that is being used now? 
The Open Space Authority aims to replace current MapBox and Open Street Maps with customized 
website applications and digital story maps created by Authority staff using Esri software. The 
story maps and applications will be maintained and updated by the Authority’s GIS team, however 
the consultants will be responsible for implementing the integration of these tools into the 
website, and ensuring that the plug-ins are functioning properly.  

 
9.  What are the existing features available in the volunteer portal apart from holding user 
information and generating reports? Can you provide some examples of the type of content 
hosted on the Volunteer Portal (i.e. regular html pages, forms, calendars, etc.)? 
Most of the current functionality related to the Volunteer Portal is based on forms and collecting 
data from the form submissions. Volunteers use the Portal to log their volunteer hours, and staff 
use the data to generate reports related to how many volunteers are in the system, what projects 
they volunteered with, and how many hours are spent on each project. Currently, OSA volunteer 
coordinators are researching alternative third-party platforms to integrate into the website. The 
third-party platform will be responsible for providing maintenance and support, however the 
website vendor will ensure proper integration into the existing site.  
 
10. Does Authority have a specific budget and timeline for the given scope? 
Website maintenance will be conducted year-round and timelines for specific projects will be 
determined and agreed upon in coordination with the vendor. Budget for website maintenance is 
approved and allocated each fiscal year. 
 
11. What are the selection criteria? What are weightages for each of the sections pricing, 
experience, etc.? 
Proposals will be evaluated for completeness of response and quality of response; the extent to 
which the Bidder’s proposal fulfills the Authority’s stated requirements as set out in the RFP; 
proposed fees and rates; relevant experience of the vendor, and previous client satisfaction. In 
determining the most responsible and qualified proposal that best fits the need of the service 
contract, the Board of Directors may use the following criteria to evaluate submitted proposals: 
 

1. Experience of the Bidder, including past performance of the firm on contracts of similar size 
and scope; 
2. Experience and qualifications of personnel employed by the Bidder; 
3. Demonstrated understanding of the scope of the service; and, 
4. Best overall financial return to the Board of Directors on the contract. 

 
12. When was the site launched? & How many months/years has it been in maintenance 
mode? 

https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjpqNm0zaTyAhWGuJ4KHRh_BcsQFnoECAYQAw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.esri.com%2Fen-us%2Fhome&usg=AOvVaw1WwjebhDmpJ56lKfmkcN3m
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The current website was launched in 2017 and has received continuous updates to the navigation, 
with several new page templates and functions added since implementation. For example, in 
2021, four new web page templates were created to allow specific formatting and functionalities.  

 
13. We noticed that the current website is built on the InPortal Content Management System 
(CMS). Are you happy with the CMS? Do you plan to stay on it or do you want to move to 
a different platform? We use professional web hosting platforms such as WPEngine, Pantheon, Kinsta 
and others. Are you open to using these? 
The Authority prefers to stay with the current InPortal CMS platform. If the vendor recommends 
switching to a new platform, the contractor must demonstrate how they will protect current assets 
during the transition, how this will factor into the budget, as well as the costs and timeline for Authority 
staff training.  
 
14.  How are you currently maintaining the site? Is there an existing partner who maintains 
your website and is that company part of the bidding process? 
The Authority currently contracts with Intechnic, a UC Research & Strategy, UX Design, and Web Design 
company, to maintain the site. The current contract is expiring, and the Authority intends to award a 
new contract through the RFP process. The Authority does not know if the current company intends to 
submit a bid. 
 
15. How many hours of maintenance was going on earlier and do you expect the same time? 
The number of maintenance hours will vary depending on the projects and needs of the organization. In 
2021, roughly 135 hours were allocated towards website maintenance and new template development.  
 
16. Our support working hours will be 9-5pm PST. For any urgent issues that arise outside 
the 9-5pm PST support window, we offer email support from our overnight remote team. 
You will be able to email and will get an acknowledgement of the issue. Hope this will not 
discourage you? 
The Open Space Authority hours of operation are between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Pacific Standard 
Time. 
 
17. We are a CA-certified small minority business based in Santa Clara county. Do you think 
we will be able to qualify for the bidding? 
The Website Maintenance RFP is open to all. We encourage all qualified vendors to submit a proposal.  
 
18. Can you share any budgetary information about this project with us, is there any assigned budget 
for this project? Please specified the budget. 
The budget for website maintenance is approved and allocated each fiscal year. As a government 
agency, the Santa Clara Valley Open Space Authority is committed to transparency. Our financial 
documents are available for the public to view on our website here.  
  
19. Is there any addendum release for this project, or any changes on the due dates? 
All proposals are due by Friday, September 10 by 5:00 p.m. Pacific Standard Time.  

https://www.openspaceauthority.org/public-information/financials.html

